TOWN OF LOS GATOS MEETING DATE: 02/12/2025
PLANNING COMMISSION

DATE: February 7, 2025

TO: General Plan Committee

FROM: Joel Paulson, Community Development Director

SUBJECT: Consider Forwarding a Recommendation to the Planning Commission to

Amend the General Plan to Allow 100 Percent Affordable Housing Projects as
a By-Right Use in the Mixed-Use Commercial General Plan Land Use
Designation and Amend Chapter 29 (Zoning Regulations) of the Town Code to
Add 100 Percent Affordable Housing Projects as a Permitted Use in the
Restricted Commercial Highway (CH) Zone Pursuant to Implementation
Program AB of the 2023-2031 Housing Element. Adoption of this Resolution
and Ordinance are Exempt Pursuant to CEQA, Section 15061(b)(3) in that it
Can be Seen with Certainty that they Will Not Impact the Environment.
General Plan Amendment Application GP-24-004 and Zoning Code
Amendment Application A-24-010. Project Location: Town Wide. Applicant:
Town of Los Gatos. Project Planner: Ryan Safty.

RECOMMENDATION:

Consider forwarding a recommendation to the Planning Commission to amend the General Plan
to allow 100 percent affordable housing projects as a by-right use in the Mixed-Use Commercial
General Plan Land Use Designation and amend Chapter 29 (Zoning Regulations) of the Town
Code to add 100 percent affordable housing projects as a permitted use in the Restricted
Commercial Highway (CH) Zone pursuant to Implementation Program AB of the 2023-2031
Housing Element.

CEQA:

Adoption of this ordinance and resolution are exempt pursuant to California Environmental
Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3), because it can be seen with certainty that
they will not significantly affect the physical environment in that they allow affordable housing
as a permitted use in the Mixed-Use Commercial General Plan Land Use Designation and CH
zone and residential uses are already allowed in the Mixed-Use Commercial General Plan Land
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Use Designation with a mixed-use project and residential uses are already allowed with a
Conditional Use Permit in the CH zone as a part of a mixed-use project.

BACKGROUND:

With certification of the 2023-2031 Housing Element, the Town committed to completing the
Implementation Programs contained in the Housing Element. The Town is required to report
the progress made on the Housing Element Implementation Programs to the California
Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) to demonstrate compliance with
the Housing Element and maintain its certification. Implementation Program AB of the Housing
Element requires amendments to the Mixed-Use Commercial Land Use Designation of the
General Plan and the CH zone (Chapter 29 of Town Code) to allow for 100 percent affordable
residential development in these areas without the need of a commercial component within
the Mixed-Use General Plan Land Use Designation and CH zone (Attachment 1). Specifically,
Implementation Program AB states the following:

= Amend the General Plan and the Municipal Code to allow for 100 percent affordable
residential development without the requirement of commercial uses.

The role of the General Plan Committee (GPC) is to assist the Planning Commission and Town
Council on matters relating to the General Plan or any specific plans. As a legislative item, the
Planning Commission will make a recommendation to Town Council on the proposed
amendments.

DISCUSSION:

The following is a summary of the required amendments for consideration by the GPC.

A. Mixed-Use Commercial General Plan Land Use Designation

The Mixed-Use Commercial Land Use Designation within the Town of Los Gatos 2020
General Plan Land Use Element currently permits, among other things, a mixture of retail,
office, and residential uses in a mixed-use project. However, a residential use is not
permitted unless associated with a commercial use within a mixed-use project.

Housing Element Implementation Program AB requires amending this Designation to also
allow a standalone residential use when the development would be 100 percent affordable.
The proposed General Plan amendment would affect all Town parcels with a Mixed-Use
Commercial Land Use Designation and is not limited to the properties included in the Sites
Inventory of the Housing Element. Attachment 2 shows the draft amendment to the Mixed-
Use Commercial General Plan Land Use Designation.
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B. Restricted Commercial Highway (CH) Zone

Generally speaking, Town properties with a Mixed-Use Commercial General Plan Land Use
Designation are zoned CH, and these properties are located along Los Gatos Boulevard,
north of Shannon Road. According to Town Code Section 29.60.415, “the CH or restricted
highway commercial zone is intended for development of vehicular-oriented activities and
sales along highway frontages, intermingled with compatible retail, service, and
administrative activities.”

Housing Element Implementation Program AB would involve amending Town Code Section
29.60.420 (CH Zone — Permitted Uses), adding “100 percent affordable housing
developments” as a permitted use in the zone. The proposed Town Code amendment
would affect all Town parcels that are zoned CH and is not limited to the properties
included in the Sites Inventory of the Housing Element. Attachment 3 shows the draft
amendment to Town Code Section 29.60.420.

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:

Public notification included a legal ad in the paper, published on February 7, 2025.

PUBLIC COMMENTS:

As of the drafting of this report, no comments from the public have been received.
CONCLUSION:

The GPC should consider the draft amendments to the 2020 General Plan Land Use Element
and Chapter 29 (Zoning Regulations) of the Town Code regarding 100 percent affordable

residential development in the Mixed-Use Commercial General Plan Land Use Designation and
the CH Zone of the Town Code, and make a recommendation to the Planning Commission.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Housing Element Implementation Program AB
2. Draft General Plan Amendment
3. Draft Zoning Code Ordinance Amendment
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